Chapter 3 Cancer Nanotechnology for Drug Targeting and Delivery Approaches



Vadivel Siva, Chunchana Kuppe Renuka Prasad Ravikumar, Ponnusamy Thillai Arasu, Nagendra Nath Yadav, Arumugam Murugan, Hardeo Singh Yadav, Sultan Asath Bahadur, and Saminathan Balamurali

Contents

3.1	Introduction.			
3.2	Classification of Cancers	56		
	3.2.1 Squamous Cell Carcinoma.	56		
	3.2.2 Transitional Cell Carcinoma.	56		
	3.2.3 Adenocarcinoma.	56		
	3.2.4 Basal Cell Carcinoma.	57		
	3.2.5 Lymphoma	57		
	3.2.6 Myeloma.	57		
3.3	Classification by Grade			
3.4	Causes of Cancer.	58		
	3.4.1 Cause of Cancer Through Infectious Agents	59		
3.5	Early Diagnosis and Screening.	60		
3.6	Existing Technology	61		
	3.6.1 Types of Cancer Treatment.	61		
3.7	Drawbacks of Existing Cancer Treatments.	64		
3.8	Benefits of Nanotechnology in Cancer Treatments	65		

V. Siva · S. A. Bahadur

Department of Physics, Condensed Matter Physics Laboratory, International Research Centre, Kalasalingam Academy of Research and Education, Krishnankoil, Tamil Nadu, India

Chunchana Kuppe Renuka Prasad Ravikumar Department of Chemistry, East West Institute of Technology, Bangalore, Karnataka, India

P. T. Arasu

Department of Chemistry, College of Natural and computational Sciences, Wollega University, Nekemte, Ethiopia

N. N. Yadav · A. Murugan (⊠) · H. S. Yadav Department of Chemistry, North Eastern Regional Institute of Science and Technology, Itanagar, Arunachal Pradesh, India e-mail: amu@nerist.ac.in

S. Balamurali

Department of Computer Applications, Kalasalingam Academy of Research and Education, Krishnankoil, Tamil Nadu, India

© The Author(s), under exclusive license to Springer Nature Switzerland AG 2021 M. Saravanan, H. Barabadi (eds.), *Cancer Nanotheranostics*, Nanotechnology in the Life Sciences, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-74330-7_3

3.9	Tools of	of Nanotechnology for Cancer Diagnosis and Therapy	65	
	3.9.1	Liposomes	66	
	3.9.2	Nanoshells	67	
	3.9.3	Quantum Dots	67	
	3.9.4	Gold Nanoparticles	69	
	3.9.5	Dendrimers	70	
	3.9.6	Nanowires	72	
	3.9.7	Solid Lipid Nanoparticles (SLNs)	73	
	3.9.8	Carbon Nanotube	74	
3.10	Drug-	Fargeting Approaches for Cancer Therapy	76	
	3.10.1	Active Targeting	76	
	3.10.2	Passive Targeting	78	
3.11	Use of	Nanotechnology in Conventional Cancer Therapy	79	
	3.11.1	Photothermal Therapy	79	
	3.11.2	Gene Therapy	81	
3.12	Future	Research	82	
3.13	Conclu	1sions	83	
Refer	References			

3.1 Introduction

Cancer is a wide tenure; it describes the illness that results from cellular change and source the unrestrained development and separation of cells, which is also called malignancy, i.e., an irregular development of cells. The normal cells become abnormal and grow beyond their usual boundaries that can affect any part of the body; it can also invade nearest body parts and spread to other organs (Anand et al., 2008). The normal cells transform into cancer cells through a multistage process that develops a malignant tumor from the precancerous lesion. Presently more than 100 types, together with lung cancer, lymphoma, breast, skin, prostate, colon cancer, and many symptoms, exists based on the type of cancer. Curing of cancer may be done based on the treatments using chemotherapy, radiation, and/or surgery. In that, a few kinds of cancer cause quick cell development, while others cause cells to develop and partition at a slower rate (Ghoncheh et al., 2015). Malignant growth is a significant general medical issue around the world. Worldwide segment attributes and anticipate an expanding disease frequency in the following for many years, with >20 million new malignancy cases every year expected by 2025. Cancer disease is the second most common reason for death internationally, representing an expected 9.6 million passings in 2018. In the next few decades, it is projected that low and center pay nations will be hit by the increment in cases and passings. Many of those cases can be prevented, or at the very least treated effectively, when there is an early diagnosis. By ranking, five most frequent cancers in the World are lung, prostate, colorectum, stomach, and liver in males and breast, colorectum, lung, cervix uteri, and stomach in females (Kolonel et al., 2004; Jemal et al., 2007). Nowadays, lung cancer is a more common cause of deaths found in both women and men, and out of these, women are leading in number of deaths due to the cancer in many countries.

The maximum passing cases in women are reported in North America, Western and Northern Europe, Australia, China, and New Zealand. It remains the 1st or 2nd foremost reason for early passing (i.e., at ages 30–69 years) in 134 countries out of 184. It positions 3rd or quarter in remaining 45 nations. Of the 15.2 million premature deaths from non-communicable diseases worldwide in 2018, 36% was due to the cancer. The estimate of global cancer-related problems by 2040 is predictable to surpass 27 million (Lowy & Collins, 2016; Bray et al., 2018). Cancer is a disease of concerning international issue and is another foremost purpose of loss of life. The USA remnants one of the nations with the very best prevalence quotes of prostate cancers. Historically, 93% of prostate cancer occurs as acinar adenocarcinoma. The last 7% of prostate cancers are different like neuroendocrine tumors, basal cellular carcinoma, and ductal adenocarcinoma (Davis et al., 2012). Post-cancerous effects are not as mutual in the early stages of prostate cancer as in ascites adenocarcinoma. Acinar adenocarcinoma and intraocular carcinoma are difficult to distinguish because they are often seen together. This cancer cell achieving abnormal growth due to a genetic mutation that promotes cancer is called cancer cells. Therefore, to diagnose cancer, it is more important to classify the description of the cancer cells and/or biomarkers exclusively articulated in cancer cells. For example, specific proteins (e.g., Matrix metalloproteinase) are expressed to promote irregular development on cancer cells, which characterize the diagnosis and classification of cancer cells such proteins and their function. Cancer is characterized by individuality after development signs, irresponsibility to indications that inhibit uncontrolled replication, cell division, prolonged angiogenesis apoptosis, and lastly the ability to pierce into additional tissues recognized as metastasis (Hanahan & Weinberg, 2011; Siegel et al., 2020). The microenvironment of the benign tumor reveals variations in extracellular environment and different regulatory proteins, which play an important role in the origin and expansion of cancers (Pavlova & Thompson, 2016). Prior to 1950, surgery was considered as the only favored treatment for cancer. After 1960, radiation therapy was introduced to regulate resident sicknesses. Over a period of time, it was thought that individual cure of surgical therapy and radiation could now not be viable contrasted with their utilization to control most malignant growths. Currently, biological molecules, drugs, and immune mediators are used for remedy. To date, we've no longer reached the level of first-rate treatment that counteracts the mortality charge and shortens the long-time period survival fee for metastatic cancer. The trials and features of dissimilar tumor agencies have been decided to create a new revolution in neoplastic cancer or to target drugs for tumors. Energy remedy is based totally on the usage of physical objects consisting of protons, electrons, and diverse ions to killing cancer cells (Nagai & Kim, 2017). The instrument overdue therapy using radiation is that huge power radiations which inhibit cell separation and their capacity to multiply with the aid of their negative inherited cloth. If that is complete earlier surgery, therapy using radiation is assumed through the aim of shrinking the tumor. If achieved afterward with surgical treatment, the radiation will destroy the left facet in the back of the tumor cells and decrease the recurrence of most cancers. Because radiation remedy works in a localized manner to treat universal cancers, chemotherapy may be used single or with radiation remedy (Culp et al.,

2020), which is measured to be the maximum operative and widely used technique in maximum kinds of cancer. Chemotherapy medicines aim tumor cells and produce mostly sensitive O_2 types, which often finish tumor cells through genetic toxicity (DeVita & Chu, 2008; Aslam et al., 2014). However, chemotherapy affects normal cells, leading to varying degrees of adjacent belongings such as hair loss, nausea, fatigue, and death in so many belongings (Aslam et al., 2014).

3.2 Classification of Cancers

Cancers can be classified as squamous cells or epithelial cells based on their cellular origin. There are certain types of cancer that start from a specific type of cell. The most common type of cancer, "carcinomas," originates from epithelial cells. These cells are found mainly on the outside and inside of the human body (Visvader, 2011; Thun et al., 2010; Kotnis et al., 2005). There are different types of epithelial cells with specific names for cancer.

3.2.1 Squamous Cell Carcinoma

The type of cancer that occurs in squamous cells located underneath the external surface of human skin (Blackadar, 2016). Squamous cells include numerous tissues, such as the lungs, intestines, kidneys, stomach, and bladder.

3.2.2 Transitional Cell Carcinoma

This type of cancer arises from a kind of epithelial material called the transitional epithelium. These are mainly found on the outer surface of the bladder, uterus, kidneys, and some other organs (Hassanpour & Dehghani, 2017).

3.2.3 Adenocarcinoma

Adenocarcinoma forms in glandular epithelial cells which secrete fluids or mucus. Epithelial cells are also called glandular tissues. Adenocarcinoma mainly involves breast, prostate, and colon cancers (Moreira-Nunes et al., 2020).

3.2.4 Basal Cell Carcinoma

When cancer develops under the epidermis or from the basal layer, the outer layer of human skin, when cancer begins in soft tissues and bones such as blood vessels, fat, muscle, fibrous tissue and lymph vessels, it is referred to as sarcomas. On the other hand, cancer of the blood-forming tissues found in the bone marrow is called leukemia. In this type of cancer, abnormal white blood cells are formed in the blood and bone core (Blackadar, 2016). Dependent on the nature of the blood cells that cause cancer, they can be divided into lymphoma and myeloid (American Cancer Society).

3.2.5 Lymphoma

Cancer that arises in lymphocyte cells (T cells or B cells) (Yuen et al., 2016).

3.2.6 Myeloma

It is a cancer that occurs in plasma cells. These are part of the immune system. When plasma cells become abnormal, they are called myeloma cells (Hassanpour & Dehghani, 2017). The five most common cancers are breast, prostate, lung, colorectum, and cervix uteri (Chiang & Massague, 2008). The most widely recognized reason for cancer mortality for men was lung, liver, stomach, colon and prostate while for women they were breasts, lung, colon, cervix and stomach. Cancer deaths in both sexes include lung, liver, stomach, colon, and breast (Vos et al., 2016). Cancer is emerging as a major health problem in low- and middle-income republics in the Asia-Pacific region, including India, and is the leading cause of death (21%) worldwide from non-communicable diseases (Pavlova & Thompson, 2016). The cancer profile varies in different populations; the evidence is that this variation is mainly the result of different lifestyle and environmental factors, which may be affected by preventive interventions (Parkin et al., 2002).

3.3 Classification by Grade

There is an irregularity which persists inside the cells with admiration to the nearby usual matters. A growth in irregularity will increase the exceptional from one to four. Well-differentiated cells carefully look like regular cells and fit to cheap grade tumors. Unsuitably distinguished cells are identical eccentric with admiration to the encompassing tissues. This is the aberration in cells which growth to their nearby usual tissues (Rosai & Ackerman, 1979). Upsurge in irregularity raises the rating, from one to four. Well-differentiated cells sensibly look like average cells and fit to inferior growths. Unsuitably distinguished cells are particularly extraordinary which recognition to the nearby matters (Jemal et al., 2007). These are well-graded tumors including:

- (a) This comprises well-distinguished cells with minor abnormalities.
- (b) These cells are temporarily distinguished and slightly irregular.
- (c) In an environment containing mutated chromosomes, the cells are abnormally different and very abnormal and crop some destructive chemicals that can infect neighboring cells and arrive in the bloodstream (Carbone, 2020).
- (d) Cells are undeveloped, rude, and undistinguishable (Oluogun et al., 2019).

3.4 Causes of Cancer

The beginning and progression of most cancers relies upon numerous issues in the cell (immune situations, hormones, and mutations) as well as outside elements from the environment (smoking, chemical substances, infectious organism, and radiation). These complete additives composed motivate bizarre cellular conduct and uncontrolled proliferation (Amador et al., 2019). As a result, abnormal cell mass grows in the form and distresses the normal tissues around them, sometimes spreading to other parts of the body (Fig. 3.1).

As indicated by the greatest natural model for malignant growth, tumor suppression and mutations in many cancers are the primary factors mainly to the improvement of cancer. Another version suggests that some mutations in a number one gene that regulates mobile department may additionally feed normal cells closer to unusual chromosome replication, subsequent in deletion or replication of whole chromosomes segments (Ames et al., 1995). These alternate in gene contented in cells creates ordinary tiers of a selected protein regardless of definite necessity. If slightly chromosomal mutation touches a protein that performs an essential role inside the mobile cycle, qualitatively or quantitatively, it may motivate most cancers (Idikio, 2011). Nearby is likewise robust suggestion that undesirable totaling (hypermethylation) or removal of organizations (hypomethylation) to genes worried within the guideline of cell series, apoptosis, and DNA repair is related to a few cancers, which is crucial to remember that cancers container take years or few months to add enough DNA mutations to come across the cancer form. Consequently, there can be various mechanisms that bring about the improvement of malignant growth. This further darkens the troublesome errand of characterizing the genuine reason for malignant growth (Golemis et al., 2018).



Fig. 3.1 Factors involved in causing cancer

3.4.1 Cause of Cancer Through Infectious Agents

Development of tumor through infectious agents has three primary types. The first type is the acceptance of ongoing irritation because of a proceeding with safe reaction to a determined contamination. This happens, for instance, on account of hepatitis C infection (HCV), related with cancer for liver, which ceaselessly imitates in the liver, located up an ongoing condition of aggravation there. Another example is H. pylori. There is a tall predominance of tenacious disease with H. pylori: around the world, 75% of persons is tainted, with commonness actuality advanced in sub-Saharan Africa; anywhere *H. pylori* is related with 63.4% of all stomach cancer growths (Griffin & Kellam, 2009). Nonetheless, the way that not all people affected with H. pylori create cancer due gastric obviously shows that the irresistible specialist is a danger factor, yet that other natural and hereditary impacts are associated with disease arrangement (Ataollahi et al., 2015). Second kind, oncogenesis can happen via infection instigated exchange. This is because of the estimation of the pathological genome in a dormant structure in an inflamed cell, both without duplication, likewise with Epstein-Barr infection (EBV), which contaminates B lymphocytes, or through joining of the pathological genome into a host-mobile chromosome, similarly as with humanoid papilloma virus (HPV), the reason for cervical malignant growth. EBV is an awful lot of the time outstanding in teenagers Burkitt's lymphoma, put up-relocate non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, B-cell lymphomas, nasopharyngeal carcinoma, and Hodgkin's contamination (Griffin & Kellam, 2009). The third type is the consistent concealment of the invulnerable scheme by way of the transferrable agent, for instance, the immunodeficiency like AIDS brought approximately through HIV disease. The presence of regular mechanisms of immune commentary for cancer cells, which is due to an infectious etiology will similarly envelop safe structures that frequently control the contamination, recommends why microbes with oncogenic capacity don't quickly motivate malignancy. An undermined resistant scheme can bring about a multiplied price of disease pushed tumors with the aid of debilitating the secure management. Such a diffusion is visible, as an instance, in transplant sufferers, who're being handled with immune suppressants, or in humans with AIDS (Stein et al., 2008). Microorganisms related with malignant growth represent a significant number of these types; tenacious infection includes sidestepping the insusceptible reaction just as ongoing irritation, which even in the invulnerable skilled prompts chronic cell propagation and a more serious danger of oncogenic conversion. Nonetheless, numerous non-oncogenic microbes are similarly capable at these cycles, showing that different components must be included (Shaco-Levy et al., 2010). For instance, the danger of a transferable agent producing malignancy may likewise rely upon the cell type diseased, as convinced cell heredities might be additionally "inclined" to change than others. These instances, the expanded commonness of leukemias and lymphomas in kids and youthful grownups, recommends that lymphocytes are more powerless to change.

3.5 Early Diagnosis and Screening

Early analysis is described as early detection of cancer in patient's symptoms of the disease. This is in assessment to the cancer check that seeks to pick out unauthorized (pre-scientific) cancer or pre-cancerous lesions which are apparently healthy goal populace. Early diagnosis and screening of cancer are crucial components of complete management of cancer, but they fluctuate in resource content material and infrastructure requirements, effect, and fee (Loud & Murphy, 2017; Shieh et al., 2016). The recognition of early diagnosis of most cancers is on those with signs and symptoms with most cancers. The aim is to link the diagnosis at an early level to the diagnosis and remedy at once. When accomplished right now, cancer may be diagnosed at a curable degree, improving existence and high-quality of existence. There are three steps to early diagnosis including (a) access to consciousness and care about tumor signs; (b) experimental assessment, diagnosis, and stabilization; (c) and admittance to action including ache release (Loud & Murphy, 2017).

The average fame of early analysis and screening programs may be assessed inside the distribution of most cancers reputed in diagnosis and traits through the years. For example, an area that has excessive incidence costs of advanced cancers may be lower than the early diagnostic capability (Nersesyan & Slavin, 2007).

3.6 Existing Technology

3.6.1 Types of Cancer Treatment

Since the acknowledgment of cancer, the target of remarkable research is to find novel techniques for quality therapy approaches for malignancy. Currently, more than 60% of all continuous clinical quality therapy preliminaries overall are focusing on cancer (Wu et al., 2006). The variety of therapies and its improvement depend on the type of cancer, its locality, and stage of progression. Some are "local" treatments like surgery and radiation therapy, which are used to treat a specific tumor or area of the body. Drug treatments (such as chemotherapy, immunotherapy, or targeted therapy) are often called "systemic" treatments because they can affect the entire body. Chemotherapy, surgical removal of tumors, radiation therapy, and its techniques are discussed in this section.

3.6.1.1 Chemotherapy

Chemotherapy, surgical treatment, and radiotherapy are a number of the most cancers remedies available in recent times (Morrison et al., 2011). The records of chemotherapy dates returned to the early twentieth century; however, its usage in cancer treating commenced within the thirties. The word "chemotherapy" was invented by Paul Ehrlich, a scientist belonging to German, who had a specific hobby in agents of alkalis and got up with this word to explain the chemical remedy for the ailment. Chemotherapy is a drug remedy that uses effective chemicals to kill the quick growing cells in the human body (Wang et al., 2016; Su et al., 2016). Chemotherapy works here to result in modifications inside the tumor cells in order that they break rising or expire. Subsequently, the two parts of chemotherapy drugs are cytostatic and cytotoxic, individually. Chemotherapy is regularly used to treat cancer due to the fact that most cancer cells grow and grow tons quicker than the most cells in the frame. The kind of chemotherapy case is to be had. Chemotherapy drugs can be used alone or in combination to deal with extraordinary sorts of cancer (Wan et al., 2012). Although chemotherapy is a notable way to treat many sorts of cancer, chemotherapy also contains the hazard of aspect results. Some chemotherapy aspect results are moderate and treatable, while others can be a reason for serious headaches. Another approach of remedy is neoadjuvant treatment, which objectives to decrease the scale of the number one growth and stop micro metastasis. This kind of action recovers the most conventional medical strategies in retaining the feature of important organs (Mouw et al., 2017). Neoadjuvant chemotherapy is indicated for cancer of the breast, anal, lungs, gastrointestinal rectal, bladder, neck and head, and a few kinds of sarcoma. Nearby are some cancers on which adjuvant chemotherapy has been installed with healing results, and the prices of therapy with new effective pills and mixtures are predicted to increase in addition (Roeder et al., 2020). Chemotherapy can be used for (a) neoadjuvant chemotherapy - shrink a tumor

before radiation treatment or medical procedure; (b) adjuvant chemotherapy, abolish cancer cells outstanding after surgery or therapy using radiation; (c) the other treatments (radiation or biological) may be additional active; and (d) abolishing tumor cells that reappear or feast to additional portions of your body (Roeder et al., 2020).

3.6.1.2 Surgical Removal of Tumors

Resection or operation surgery is considered to be the maximum hopeful and ordinary remedy of many kind and malevolent tumors because it guarantees minimum harm to the encompassing tissues as compared to radiotherapy and chemotherapy (Tohme et al., 2017; Benjamin, 2014). Another cause to recall surgical treatment as a desired treatment choice is that the tumor can be eliminated without undue threat of tissue injury (Demicheli et al., 2008). Dissimilar varieties of open or minimally invasive surgical procedures may be executed relying on different factors including a) the cause for the surgery; b) patient's preference; c) the portion of the body somewhere operation is to be achieved; and d) the tumor mass to be detached (Demicheli et al., 2008). Operations also differ in contingent on the phase of the tumor (Tian et al., 2018). Surgery may be done for the cases including (a) Eliminate the whole growth from a specific area; (b) Debulk removes a growth that can cause damage to a specific organ; (c) A large tumor eases the symptoms of cancer when it causes pain or severe pressure on any part of the body (Tian et al., 2018). During open surgical treatment, a large reduction is made, and that is normally accompanied with the aid of elimination of the tumor and wholesome tissue related to approximately carefully current lymph bulges. In assessment, for less aggressive surgical treatment, the general practitioner types a few small incisions instead of an adult, after which with the help of a laparoscope, a thin tube is connected to a camera, which sees the tumor in detail. The diagram presentations of the image on a screen, which lets in the health care professional to display the operation in quite good. The tumor, with a small amount of healthful tissue, is cautiously eliminated with the help of special surgical equipments (Wagner et al., 1995).

3.6.1.3 Radiation-Based Surgical Knife

3.6.1.3.1 Gamma Knife Systems

There is no real operation in a gamma knife technique; the gamma knife is not really a knife. Gamma Knife a medical procedure is a therapy strategy that utilizations radiation and computer-guided planning to treat brain tumors, vascular malformations and other different irregularities in the brain. The Gamma knife is really a therapy that carries light emissions centered radiation. Many radiation beams focus on the cell mass under treatment, which produces exceptionally high levels of radiation without a surgical incision or opening (Kano et al., 2017).

3.6.1.3.2 Stereotactic Radiosurgery

Stereotactic radiosurgery (SRS) is a type of healing radiology that uses ionizing radiation to damage and spoil decisions on parts within a tissue or organ. This method discloses a minor portion of the body to a totally excessive quantity of radiation. Nevertheless, no incision or blade changed into use within the complete way, but it's far nonetheless known as a surgery due to the fact the consequences of this treatment are similar to a normal operation. Since the administered radiation beam may be very high, it's vital to pay extra consideration to the radiation beam in order that the peripheral tissues are left unaffected. It is commonly applied in brain tumors that are hard or hazardous to use traditional surgical techniques or where a patient's health does no longer support a surgical procedure (Andrews et al., 2004).

3.6.1.3.3 Proton Beam Therapy

Cyclotron or proton beam therapy is a type of molecular radiation therapy. Instead of using beams of radiation, gamma beams, or X-beams, molecular radiation therapy uses particles such as protons or neutrons (Galluzzi et al., 2017).

3.6.1.4 Radiation Therapy

Radiation therapy plays an important role as the primary or adjunctive treatment for many gynecological cancers (Rosenfeld et al., 2014). There are many side effects related to the use of radiation therapy. It is a form of most cancer treatment that uses beams of excessive strength to kill the cancer cells. Radiation remedy often makes use of X-rays, however can also use protons or different kinds of strength. The term "radiation therapy" frequently mentions exterior beam radiation remedy. During this sort of radiation, excessive power beams come from a device outside your frame that are aimed at the beams at a specific point on your frame. During a special kind of radiation remedy referred to as brachytherapy, the radiation is placed inside your body (Roeder et al., 2020). Radiation therapy damages cells through extinguishing the gene that panels how cells produce and division. Although each healthy and most cancer cells are broken via energy remedy, the goal of radiation remedy is to spoil as many regular, healthful cells as imaginable. Normal cells often repair damage as a result of radiation (Baskar et al., 2014).

3.6.1.5 Radiation Therapy Techniques Fractionation

Fractionated transport of radiation therapy utilizes the radiological organic differentiation of cancer cells, multiplying the survival margin of normal cells over the most cancers' cells means of various occasions since they have an entire re-establish design brought by way of the supplemental degrees of radiation (Balukrishna et al., 2015).

3.6.1.5.1 3D Conformal Radiotherapy

The use of 2D square fields in therapy has arisen as outdated, making CT scan primarily based on 3D radiation therapy (Read, 1998), the primary technique, for detecting cancerous hundreds, heading off vital organs, and target selection for radiation remedy.

3.6.1.5.2 Image-Guided Radiotherapy

The use of pre-treatment imaging techniques such as image-guided radiotherapy helps to accurately stabilize the radiation, divert the radiation from the complex organs, and target only the tumor masses, thus minimizing organ damage resulting from objective errors (Chen et al., 2009).

3.6.1.5.3 Intensity-Modulated Radiation Therapy

This innovation utilizes an opposite scheduling software that modifies the intensity of the beam radiation used through treatment, subsequent in the indiscretion of the radiation levels, which distinguishes the target from the vital organs (Jalil ur Rehman et al., 2018).

3.7 Drawbacks of Existing Cancer Treatments

Cancer cures may result in numerous side consequences. A side effect occurs when the treatment harms healthy cells. Side effect outcomes may range from man or woman to person and from person to person of remedy. In trend, chemotherapy is a remedy that makes use of chemical sellers to break all of the dividing cells. Therefore, chemotherapy is a particular, non-molecular therapy. Most chemotherapy agents kill most cancer cells by means of interacting with DNA synthesis or cell function (Chakraborty & Rahman, 2012). Disadvantages of chemotherapy encompass the development of poisonous facet results, resistance to chemical agents, and the want for other treatment in combination with chemotherapy in an effort to cure the affected person (Schirrmacher, 2019). These atoms are the reason sub-atomicbased medicines are so cherished. Most molecular-based therapies are designed to ruin handiest cancer cells. Since atomic-based cures are specific, they're not related with poisonous side results, for example, chemotherapy. Some types of chemotherapy can cause your hair to fall out. This condition is called alopecia. Hair usually grows back two to three months after treatment (Chakraborty & Rahman, 2012). Cancer treatments may make the stomach feel debilitated and may upchuck (Chakraborty & Rahman, 2012; Nurgali et al., 2018). Some of the time, disease patients become ill from considering malignancy treatment. Medications used to treat cancer can cause some people to have difficulty concentrating or remembering things (Chakraborty & Rahman, 2012). Cancer and its treatment can cause pain. Pain can make it difficult to do normal activities. In surgical treatments, the inability to kill the microorganism around the edges of the tumor may leave the patient's tumor cells after surgery (Chakraborty & Rahman, 2012).

3.8 Benefits of Nanotechnology in Cancer Treatments

To obtain lengthy-term survival benefits, a couple of molecular adjustments or drug mixtures targeting cancer markers can be required (Jin et al., 2020). This could be one of the maximum difficult but promising precision most cancers treatment strategies in the destiny. Nanotechnology can offer rapid and sensitive uncovering of maximum cancer-associated particles, and scientists can come across molecular variations once they happen in a minor proportion of cells. Nanotechnology has the capacity to create absolutely novel and especially effective therapeutic sellers (Jaishree & Gupta, 2012). Eventually and exclusively, the use of nanosized merchandise for cancer reduces its potential to act straight away and repair without problems; ability to provide and/or deal with remedy, prognosis, or both; and the potential to passively accumulate on the tumor web page, actively concentrated on cancer cells and turning in conventional biological barriers inside the body, together with the dense stromal tissue of the pancreas or the blood-brain barrier that substantially restricts the distribution of living cells to our central nervous system (Jin et al., 2020).

3.9 Tools of Nanotechnology for Cancer Diagnosis and Therapy

Cancer diagnosis and therapy research activity in the area of nanotechnology are powered by recent advances in the development of various vehicles for efficient drug delivery. Various vehicles such as liposomes, nanoshells, quantum dots, gold nanoparticles, dendrimers, nanowires, solid lipid nanoparticles (SLNs), and carbon nanotube have been developed so far and described below (Jin et al., 2020).

3.9.1 Liposomes

Liposome is colloidal drug carrier applied in gene therapy and utilized for drug targeting due to their remarkable capability of solubilizing the water-insoluble herbal substance and along these traces suitable for remedy of cancer. Liposomes are measured >400 nm and consist of phospholipids. It is a cholesterol bilayer layer (Chaturvedi et al., 2019). Structure of liposomes has a structure of hydrophilic heads settled through surfactants and numerous hydrophobic tails (Fig. 3.2) (Juri et al., 2017). Because of this shape, fluid hydrophilic segments can be trapped in the internal, at the same time as the lipophilic segments may be mixed between the lipid bilavers (Yue & Dai, 2018; Bozzuto & Molinari, 2015; Akbarzadeh et al., 2013; Allen & Cullis, 2013; Zhang et al., 2008). In liposomes, the attention of drugs within the membrane is associated with exclusive advantages, for instance, protection of medication from degradation, negligible indistinct poisonousness, and simple conveyance to the centered accessible. Liposomes are biodegradable, biocompatible, and more consistent in colloidal answers and include the assets to target most cancer cells. In normal sound tissues, the liposome is held within the bloodstream due to the fact the tight intersections in endothelial cells do not permit any molecule spill out of vessel but rather than veins in stable tissue; tumor vessels are leakier that permit the nanosized liposome to spill out from blood to focused tumor website. In any case, liposomes have some drawbacks, for example, low encapsulation efficiency, terrible storage stability, simple oxidation of liposomal



Fig. 3.2 Structure of liposomes. (Adapted with permission from Juri et al. (2017) Copyright © 2017, Dove Medical Press Limited)

67

phospholipids, and short transport time. Conveyance to tumor locations and decrease the effects of chemotherapy or antimicrobial treatments, just as to enhance explicitness to harmful locations. The tremendous drawback of liposomes is its quick degradation and freedom by way of the liver macrophages (MeCormack & Gregoriadis, 1994), consequently lessening the term of pastime of the medication it bears. This can be decreased partly with the appearance of secrecy liposomes wherein the liposomes are blanketed with substances like polyoxyethylene (IIlum & Dacis, 1984) which forestalls opsonization of the liposome and their take-up by macrophages (Senior et al., 1999; Anajwala et al., 2010).

The steadiness of liposomes is impacted by means of the lipid composition and shape, and this provides the improvement of liposomal product design. The stability of liposomal nanostructures includes several perspectives, for instance, colloidal and biological stability should colloidal protection need, liposomes structure largersized particles, and their productivity as transport systems are decreased. Encapsulation of medicine into liposomes has accredited the therapeutic retailers to the target and furthermore evaded their take-up by way of the reticuloendothelial system (Constantinidou et al., 2009; Ananda et al., 2011; Juri et al., 2017). Because of specific enhancements given at the tumor web page, the liposomes can go to the tumor cells and transport the chemotherapeutic sellers, which are compressed into the nanoparticles (Liu & Xu, 2015).

3.9.2 Nanoshells

The size of nanoshells is around 10–300 nm (Fig. 3.3). It includes insulator central which is normally composed of silica enclosed by a tiny gold outer case (Hirsch et al., 2003; Loo et al., 2004). These nanoshells translate plasmon-interceded electrical energy into light and are likewise adaptable to optical tuning with an emanation/retention exhibit from the UV to the infrared which is valuable in upgrading imaging properties (Kim, 2007; Alper, 2005). Nanoshells are engaging as they offer imaging and therapeutic opportunities in the medical care area without being related with substantial metal poisonousness.

3.9.3 Quantum Dots

Quantum dots (QDs) were exposed by Alexie Ekimov and Louis E Brus in 1980. Quantum dots are nanoparticles within size of 2–10 nm which is shown in Fig. 3.4 (Maiti & Bhattacharyya, 2013). Quantum dot acts as small semiconductors. A property of semiconductors lies between bulk semiconductors and discrete molecules because nanoparticles have the properties of high surface-to-volume proportions. The determination of nanoparticles absorption and emission properties may be controlled accurately due to their sizes and shapes (Morrow et al., 2007). Nanocrystals



Fig. 3.3 Silica core-gold shell nanoshells. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Abshikbayeva et al. 2019) Copyright © 2019)



Fig. 3.4 Quantum dot. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Krishanan & George 2014) Copyright © 2014)

of quantum dots have luminescent, optical, and chemical properties due to their size and surface (Fang et al., 2012). Quantum dot acts as an efficient fluorescent probe due to size and high stability. Due to quantum confinement effects, quantum dot has the unique property of photophysical as a colloidal nanocrystalline semiconductor (Shao et al., 2011; Kashyap et al., 2019). Quantum dot may be useful to find the molecule biomarkers for cancer diagnosis and treatment. Quantum dot plays an essential role for detection of cancer which is helpful for diagnostics, imaging, targeted drug delivery, and phototherapy. The quantum dot designs of cadmium selenide (CdSe), cadmium telluride (CdTe), indium phosphide (InP), and indium arsenide (InAs) are used in biological applications (Bharali & Mousa, 2010). The inorganic core is enclosed by an inorganic shell, which shows higher photostability and increases the fluorescence properties of the core. The surface of the shell is coated with another layer that enhances solubility and stability of quantum dots in the blood (Madani et al., 2013).

Use of QDs in cancer identity was set up by Gao and co-workers (2002) when they named human prostate Cancer boom cells with QDs shaped with an immunizer for Prostate-Specific Membrane Antigen (PSMA). Bostick et al. (2006) diagnosed five biomarkers on a similar tissue slide with the aid of OD-based multiplexed imaging, from which more biomarkers will be expected utilizing diverse slides each stained with the five diverse biomarkers. Ruan et al. (2011) demonstrated that QD-based totally safe marking has extra constant picture force contrasted with conventional fluorescent immunolabeling. QDs can be moreover used to perceive the ovarian carcinoma marker CA125 in diverse classes of examples, for example, fixed cells, tissue regions, and xenograft portions. Moreover, the photostability of QD indicators is greater explicit and more extremely good than that of normal herbal color (Wang et al., 2004). Another studies deal with specifically mark MCF-7 and BT-474 BC cells for HER2, epidermal growth factor receptor (EGFR), estrogen receptor (ER), progesterone receptor (PR), and mammalian target of rapamycin (m-TOR) through visible and NIR QDs which confirmed that QD-based nanotechnology is an effective way to deal with proposal multiplexed disease biomarker imagery in situ on unblemished tumor tissue examples for tumor pathology study on the histological and sub-atomic levels on the identical time (O'Connor et al., 2009). Kawashima et al. (2010) efficiently centered on EGFR single-atoms in hominoid ovarian epidermal carcinoma cells (A431).

3.9.4 Gold Nanoparticles

Gold nanoparticles are playing a very important role in cancer diagnosis and treatment due to their belongings such as amphiphilicity, shape, biocompatibility size, carrier capabilities, and surface area (Fig. 3.5). Colloidal gold nanoparticles used as contrast agents due to their properties of high surface area-to-volume ratio, biological inertness, broad optical properties, low toxicity, resistance to corrosion, and good antimicrobial efficacy. Gold nanoparticles are used in bioimaging and



Fig. 3.5 Silica core-gold nanoshells. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Abshikbayeva et al., 2019) Copyright © 2019)

photothermal therapy because they are conjugated with antibodies to discover cervical and pancreatic cancers. Gold nanoparticles act as diagnostic agents in various cancers (Purohit & Singh, 2018). Gold nanoparticles have been exploited as a cargo for drug delivery. Due to surface properties of light scattering, gold nanoparticles bind with biomaterials for drug delivery (Liong et al., 2008). Light scattering properties of gold nanoparticles are altered due to their size and shape and have greater photostability (Huang et al., 2007).

3.9.5 Dendrimers

Dendrimers are polymers with distinctly branched round structure which is shown in Fig. 3.6 (Riggio et al., 2011). Dendrimers have an inner center, which may be inspired to exchange its form and size, enclosed with the aid of chains of branches with surface reactive web sites. Due to diverse surface functional agencies gift in the surface of dendrimers, various therapeutic agents can be loaded on the surface of dendrimers efficiently through conjugation like hydrophobic interaction, hydrogen bonds, or chemical linkage (Oerlemans et al., 2010). They are used for focusing on specific therapeutic drugs and molecules. Dendrimers have properties of excessive water solubility, described molecular weight, polyvalence, and biocompatibility.



Fig. 3.6 Structure of a dendrimer. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Riggio et al., 2011) Copyright © 2011)

They have performed a very vital role inside the field of nanomedicine. Dendrimer is a nanoparticle with size around 1–15 nm. They can interface with cell membranes, mobile organelles, and proteins. Moreover, dendrimers with cationic surfaces will be in trendy collaboration with the lipid bilayer, encouraging elevated penetrability and faded trustworthiness of herbal membranes (Riggio et al., 2011).

Cooperation among dendrimers and cell membranes make a decision about a mechanism that reasons the spillage of cytosol proteins. Through bodily and chemical bonds, dendrimers collaborate with diverse types of drug, and they can be utilized for the becoming a member of hydrophobic/hydrophilic particles in their vacant cavities through nonbonding cooperation. Another option is to attach the drug particle to its fringe, ultimately obtaining a complicated system. The complication is shaped because of the electrostatic connections or formation between the drug and the dendrimers. Additionally, the covalent formation of drug to dendrimers may additionally incorporate PEG, p-amino benzoic acid, p-amino hippuric acid, and lauryl chains or biodegradable linkages which include amide or ester bonds. These bureaucracies were discovered to construct the dependability of drug and blood resistance time, and reason raised healing interest (Madaan et al., 2014). One extra favorable advantage of the dendrimer is that it can gather with DNA in the cluster model that is DNA-polyamidoamine in the cluster as an example

DNAPAMAM. This complex proficiently destroys malignant cells which have specific folic acid receptors extraordinarily. Dendrimer-antibody conjugates bind successfully with prostate-unique membrane antigen tremendous (LNCaP.FGC) cells while they do now not to bind with ordinary cells and the uptake of the conjugate was additionally much greater than unconjugated dendrimer in tumor cells. Additional period of dendrimer, for instance, glycodendrimers, is glycopeptide dendrimers formed to the anti-mitotic agent colchicine and dendrimers that can be part of sugar moieties into their improvement (Woller & Cloninger, 2001; Roy & Baek, 2002). Recently, a G5-PAMAM dendrimer has been prepared with a diameter of 5 nm and in excess of 100 functional amines at the surface. This nano-transporter was utilized for the delivery of methotrexate in a preclinical record. The dendrimer floor fee was first moderated via converting peripheral amines with acetyl organizations. At that point, the G5-PAMAM dendrimer turned into shaped with methotrexate (as the cytotoxic agent) and with folate as the focusing on atom. A biodistribution observed in mice with subcutaneous tumors validated cover and intracellular addition of dendrimers in xenograft human KB tumors that overexpressed folate receptors. The in vivo transport of the G5-PAMAM dendrimer formed with methotrexate initiated ten times lower in tumor length contrasted and observed after essential corporation of unfastened methotrexate at a similar molar attention (Kukowska-Latallo et al., 2005).

3.9.6 Nanowires

Nanowires are glowing silica wires in nanoscale folded over unmarried aspects of human hairs (Fig. 3.7). The sizes of the nanowires are very smaller than viruses but stronger than spider silk. Nanowire-based businesses are playing essential functions for diagnosis and remedy of most cancers. Due to residences of nanowires, it may be changed to experience molecular markers of cancer cells. Also, it could use the studies of kinetics of biomolecular reactions (Zheng et al., 2006). Protein covered nanowires have anticipated packages in most cancers imaging like prostate ailment, breast, and ovarian cancers (Anajwala et al., 2010). Proteins that are connected to the antibody will makeover the nanowires electrical conductance and this will be analyzed by way of a detector. Accordingly, proteins added by using malignancy cells may be identified and before evaluation of tumor may be done. They are set down throughout a small fluidic channel and that they allow cells or particles to transport via it. Nanowires can be covered with an antibody or oligonucleotide, a short stretch of DNA that may be utilized to perceive (Ravindran, 2011). In 2O₃ nanowires (NW), silicon nanowires (SiNW), and gold-conducting polymer NW (AuNW) may be independently altered for figuring out malignancy biomarkers (Choi et al., 2010; Hu et al., 2011), specifically, SiNWs for VEGF identity; peptide nucleic acid (PNA-altered SiNW for RNA malignancy biomarkers; SiO₂-NW IL-10 for alkaline phosphatase sandwich insusceptible measure of interleukin10; and osteopontin (OPN) cell breakdown within the lungs biomarkers. AuNW polymers



Fig. 3.7 Illustration of the versatility of the template-assisted synthesis of nanowires. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Piraux, 2020) Copyright © 2020)

were applied as formats for CK-7, epithelial cellular marker, enzymatic immunoassay, and polypyrrole-(Ppy-) NW, which have been included into the sphere impact transistor (FET) device, as a semiconducting material for the most cancers antigen 125 (CA 125) check (Fruscella et al., 2016).

3.9.7 Solid Lipid Nanoparticles (SLNs)

SLNs are of size in the range of 10–1000 nm and are used as a nanocarrier with packages focused on drug delivery. SLNs are organized with solid lipids which are solids at outline temperature (diglycerides, triglycerides, steroids, monoglycerides, fatty acids, or waxes) (Martinelli et al., 2019; Sonali et al., 2018). The high hydrophobicity of lipids has formed by addition of small part of surfactants or polymeric stabilizers in the aqueous medium with a purpose to have an impact on the physicochemical properties of the molecule (Waghmare et al., 2012). Hydrophobic drugs are condensed throughout the practice, even though hydrophilic drugs must be either synthetically appended to the elements or dissolve within the hydrophilic PEG shell (Liu et al., 2004). Compared to liposomes, lipid nanoparticles assure

higher drug stability and not on time delivery because of their crystalline structure. Also, in regard to other organic nanoparticles, they needn't issue with organic solvents for the duration of their manufacture, making them more noteworthy comfortable to utilize. Nonetheless, the high crystallinity of sturdy lipid nanoparticles can serve low drug loading effectiveness and additionally moderate drug discharge profiles. Consequently, nanostructured lipid transporters (NLCs) that contain as a minimum one lipids liquid at room temperature (like oleic corrosive, as an instance) are frequently appreciated (Muller et al., 2002). Solid lipid nanoparticle affiliation is the blessings of liposomes and PNPs and displays high balance within the physiological surroundings. Further, there may be no want of harmful organic solvent within the manufacturing of SLNs which makes them alright to be used. They can upload each hydrophilic and hydrophobic agent, mainly demonstrating favorable circumstances in proteins or peptides shipping (Ekambaram et al., 2012). Martins et al. (2013) have discussed the ability of camptothecin-loaded SLNs into the brain parenchyma subsequent to navigating through the blood-brain barrier (BBB). For this reason, they organized camptothecin-loaded SLNs for brain concentrated on and installation the gainful impact of SLNs on mind concentrated on when contrasted with the non-encapsulated (Fig. 3.8).

3.9.8 Carbon Nanotube

The shape of carbon nanotubes is cylindrical. Carbon nanotubes are allotropes form fullerene groups of carbon which are made up of layers of hexagonal association of graphite sheet via sp²-hybridized carbon atoms (Fig. 3.9). Carbon nanotubes have two sorts, i.e., unmarried-walled CNTs (SWNTs) and multiwalled CNTs (MWNTs).



Fig. 3.8 Proposed model of solid lipid nanoparticles structure. Schematic representation of solid lipid nanoparticle (SLN) structure, showing the surfactant, cosurfactant and the solid lipid matrix. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Bayon-Cordero et al., 2019) Copyright © 2019)



Fig. 3.9 (1) Internalization of the CNTs carried conjugate into the tumor cell via receptormediated endocytosis. (2) Taxoid was released by the cleavage of the chemical linker. (3) The free taxoid molecules were bound to microtubules to form stabilized microtubes, resulting in arrest of cell mitosis and induction of apoptosis. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Elhissi et al., 2012) Copyright © 2012)

Single-walled CNTs consist of a unmarried sheet of cylindrical graphene with width of 0.4–2 nm, and multiwalled carbon nanotubes consist of numerous concentric graphene sheets with inward breadth of 1-3 nm and outside distance across of 2–100 nm (Kesharwani & Iyer, 2015). The layers are folded right into a constant cylinder that may be open finished or protected on the limits with a greenback. CNTs have mild biodegradation and coffee biocompatibility. The physical and substance houses of CNTs are related with the structure, surface region, mechanical energy, excessive mechanical behavior, excessive electrical and high thermal conductivity and extremely-light-weight; they could offer a promising technique for gene and drug delivery for most cancers treatment (Tanaka et al., 2004) CNTs are an affordable contender for large biomedical applications because of an enormous range of trademark bodily and substance homes (Bianco et al., 2005; Ji et al., 2010). CNTs show capacities for drug loading on a superficial stage or in the inward middle through covalent and non-covalent connections. These nanoparticles can immobilize healing retailers, for example, tablets, proteins, DNA, and antibodies on the outer wall, or exemplify them inside the nanotubes, diminishing the cytotoxicity for wholesome tissues. Due to their nano-needle-like shape, carbon nanoparticles are efficiently taken up and moved into the cytoplasm of goal cells without causing mobile dying. Their packages are confined because of the manner that CNTs are hydrophobic in nature and insoluble in water and are accrued in inward organs, having a low degradation charge (Gherman et al., 2015). A multifunctional dendrimeraltered multiwalled CNT for focusing on the folic acid (FA) receptor, which is overexpressed in malignant boom cells, a single-walled CNT combined with electrochemiluminescent silica NPs for identifying PSA within the blood, and, at last, a multilayered catalyst included CNT for excessive touchy chemiluminescent immunoassay of serum AFP. CNT, due to their herbal capacity to go into the mobile layer to supply drugs interior centered changed cells and to trade over optical electricity into thermal energy, may be provided to NIR to thermally weigh down cancer cells. Formation of OD to CNT has empowered confining disorder cells within the patients, by QD imaging, and resulting cellular demolition by means of drug delivery or thermal inactivation (Madani et al., 2013). This methodology can open up new skylines on multimodal nanoplatforms in oncology. CNTs produce deadly warmness upon NIR irradiation. Whenever they are taken up with the aid of the cells, they may likewise collaborate with proteins and DNA to disturb the mobile signaling or factor of different treatments (Ren et al., 2012; Chakrabarti et al., 2015). The essential NIR light absorption assets of CNTs have been applied to destruct malignant increase cells in vitro, while their NIR photoluminescence belongings have been utilized for in vitro cell imaging and analyzing. Robinson and co-workers (2010) have clarified the utility of i.v., agency of single-walled carbon nanotubes (SWCNTs) as image luminescent probes for in vivo tumor imaging. The investigation tested sizeable favorable instances of misusing the intrinsic characteristics of SWCNTs for theranostic programs. CNTs can enhance the chemotherapy of brain growths which proposal healthier submissions in scientific performs.

3.10 Drug-Targeting Approaches for Cancer Therapy

3.10.1 Active Targeting

The vigorous directing of the drug is the maximum appropriate targeting technique for powerful delivery of nanoparticles in harmful cells without bringing approximately any poisonousness. The lively concentration on the drug can be carried through molecular popularity of the most cancers' cells both through antibodyantigen or ligand-receptor interactions (Fig. 3.10). Nanoparticles and different polymer drug conjugates provide diverse open-door probabilities so far focused on tumors through surface changes which permit precise biochemical communications with the proteins/receptors communicated heading in the right direction cells. The folate receptor (FR) is a profoundly particular tumor marker often overexpressed in over 90% of ovarian carcinoma sufferers and in several different malignancy kinds



Fig. 3.10 Schematic representation of the RME of a tumor-targeting drug conjugate, drug release, and drug-binding to the target protein. (Adapted with permission from Chen et al. (2010) Copyright © 2010, American Chemical Society)

(choriocarcinomas, uterine sarcomas, osteosarcomas). Folate receptors are normally overexpressed by means of most cancer cells due to the upgraded necessity of folate for DNA instruction. The interplay of a folate moiety with the folate receptor on tumor cells prompts an endocytic shipping which ends up in cytosolic accumulating. It is studied that folate-protected liposomes boost the aggregation of chemotherapy retailers in a diverse kinds of tumor cells and on this manner upgrades their cytotoxicity (Pan & Lee, 2005). In addition, folate-included liposomes were utilized as a codelivery automobile for DOX and causes enhance in vitro take-up of DOX in KB (human epidermal carcinoma) and HeLa (cervical malignancy) cells as those cells overexpress folate receptors (Gerasimov et al., 1999).

Dimensions of nanoparticles simply as their superficial attributes are the important boundaries which can exchange the biodistribution of nanoparticles. Particles decreased than one hundred nm and covered with hydrophilic polymers, as an example, amphiphilic polymeric compounds which can be product of polyethylene oxide, for instance, poloxamers, poloxamines, or polyethylene glycol (PEG) are being researched to break out their take-up by means of the RES. To enhance the viability of focused cancer chemotherapeutics to the tumor, a mix of passive and energetic targeting method is being researched wherein long-flowing drug companies are shaped to tumor cellular specific antibody reaction or peptides (Vasir & Labhasetwar, 2005). In another methodology of lively targeting of anticancer drug, nanoparticle fashioned integrin ligand has been proposed for gene delivery specifically to the angiogenic blood vessels in tumor-bearing mice as the integrins are vital for cell invasion and migration. Hood and co-worker (2002) mounted a DNA encapsulated cationic polymerized liposome carrying avb3 ligand and utilized it to target on the integrins of M21-cancer xenograft tumors. Results confirmed specifically enhancement in gene expression within the tumor and that the delivery of a mutant Raf gene avoided the endothelial cell signaling and angiogenesis, inflicting big tumor harm after just one injection.

3.10.2 Passive Targeting

Passive targeting suggests the gathering of drug or drug-provider machines at a particular website due to physicochemical or pharmacological components. Penetrability of the tumor vasculature increments to where particulate conveys, as an instance, nanoparticles can extravasate from blood route and restriction inside the tumor tissue. This occurs considering the fact that as tumors increase and crush the reachable delivery of oxygen and nutrients, they discharge cytokines and other signaling particles that enroll fresh blood vessels to the tumor, a cycle referred to as angiogenesis. Angiogenic blood vessels, distinctive to the tight blood vessels in maximum ordinary tissues, have cavities as tremendous as 600–800 nm among adjoining endothelial cells. Drug transporters within the nanometer size reach can extravasate through those cavities into the tumor interstitial area (Anajwala et al., 2010).

The drug transporter complex courses operate in the circulatory system, and it is to be taken to the objective receptor. Different properties of drug transporter complex, for example, atomic weight, surface charge, hydrophobic or hydrophilic nature of the surface, and its size, are key for efficient passive targeting of drugs. For example, PEG-included covertness liposomes float within the blood and its lifestyles span within the stream device is notably contributed by means of the surface price on PEG containing liposomes. The passive mode focused on the most commonly implemented method for drug shipping in most cancers mobile. As a producing tumor contains broken vasculature and subsequently activates structure one hundred-800 nm measured pores in blood vessels and receives leakier. Alongside this disfigurement in the vasculature, poor lymphatic waste aids in penetration and renovation of nanoparticles on the tumor web page and this is called as the enhanced permeability and retention (EPR) sway (Chaturvedi et al., 2019). Ordinary tumor vasculatures are lined by using near endothelial cells, hence forestalling nanoparticle drug from getting away or extravasation, even though tumor tissue vasculatures are spilling and hyperpermeable permitting specific amassing of nanoparticles within the tumor interstitial space (referred to as aloof nanoparticle tumor specializing in) (Fig. 3.11) (La Van et al., 2003).

3.11 Use of Nanotechnology in Conventional Cancer Therapy

Recent developments in nanotechnology have extended its uses in conventional cancer therapies, i.e., photothermal and gene therapy.

3.11.1 Photothermal Therapy

Photothermal treatment is a measured and successful cancer treatment which includes photothermal agents for precise warming of the target most cancers location quarter causes thermal destruction of tumor as expressed in Fig. 3.12 (Montaseri et al., 2020). These photothermal retailers are both steel nanoparticles or function chromophores or mild soaking up colors, for instance, indocyanine green,



Fig. 3.11 Schematic diagram of enhanced permeation and retention (EPR) effect. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Yu et al., 2016) Copyright © 2016)



Fig. 3.12 Proposed fabrication of meso-tetrakis (4-sulphonatophenyl) porphyrin (TPPS)/ QCS-SH/gold nanoparticles (AuNPs) for dual mode photodynamic therapy (PDT)/photothermal therapy (PTT) treatment of cancer. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Montaseri et al., 2020) Copyright © 2020)

porphyrin conjugated with transition metallic, naphthalocyanine, and so forth. In the thermal remedy of tumors, electromagnetic energies, for instance, microwaves and radiowaves, cause mobile destruction just like the denaturation of protein and membrane, in this way severe final results in cell demise. Photothermal treatment exactly targets the tumor cells due to the fact tumor cells are heat sensitive without frightening normal cells (Huang et al., 2006). Photothermal marketers like gold nanoparticle, carbon nanotubes (CNT), and nanorods sporting pills take in around 650–900 nm in near-infrared (NIR) place and convert into warmness. Iron oxide nanoparticle is like other mostly applied photothermal agent with control absorption potential ability as they've high molecule density within the water consequently brings about the big floor region. Water-suspended iron oxide nanoparticles have been regarded to supply heat while vaccinated immediately into the tumors inside the sight of applied oscillating magnetic appealing subject (Wang et al., 2017).

3.11.2 Gene Therapy

Gene therapy has been placed in a critical position in cancer treatment. Normally, in gene therapy processes, the genetic material is transported through the intravenous route; as nucleic acids are liable to degradation with the aid of nucleases and speedy clearance in systemic circulate move, a vector is wanted to percentage, ensure and shipping the genetic fabric to its web page of interest (Juri et al., 2017). This treatment can possibly get freed off the diminished viability and stale-goal harmfulness of chemotherapy and gives a superb asset for disease treatment both by way of regulating the outflow of tumor genes or via moving the genes that produce healing proteins or convert a non-poisonous compound right into a lethal drug. On the righteousness of this, numerous methodologies of most cancers gene remedy include gene silencing method making use of siRNA/shRNA, miRNA intervened gene treatment method and self-destruction gene treatment technique utilizing the transgene that causes disabled tumor development within the wake of being brought into tumor cells were grown so far (Wang et al., 2016). Concealment of tumor-specific oncogenes and changed tumor suppressor genes using the little interfering RNA (siRNA) and quick clip RNA (shRNA) facilitates in express targeting of tumor cells and ultimately evades the systemic poisonousness (Ameres et al., 2007). SiRNA is short 20-25 nucleotides in period dsRNA framed from ribonuclease, dicer intervened separate of twofold stranded RNA. SiRNA interfaces with a multifunctional



Fig. 3.13 Gene therapy strategies, mutation compensation, suicide gene therapy and immunopotentiation. (Reproduced from Open Access journal under the term of Creative Commons Attribution License (Cevher et al., 2012) Copyright © 2012)

protein, Argonaute, and systems RNA Induced Silencing Complex (RISC) which degrades vacationer RNA strand after the binding of centered corresponding mRNA as referenced in Fig. 3.13 (Cevher et al., 2012).

Genes and little RNAs may be appended to NPs by way of electrostatic interaction or conjugated onto the floor of NPs. In another way, applied nanocarriers for malignant boom genes remedy, polymeric nanoparticles, and inorganic nanoparticles had been used broadly in one of a kind most cancers remedy research. Polymerbased nanoparticles have many advantages which include small size, slender distribution, the potential to epitomize a big collection of great therapeutics, and deliver assurance from enzymatic degradation and their significant balance (Wang et al., 2015). Mattheolabakis et al. (2016) prepared a PEI-based hybrid polymer nanoparticle that blanketed HA and polyethylene glycol (PEG) and framed a polyplex by way of mixing it in with surviving silencing siRNA. Cotransfection of polyplex with CCD-C8 in most cancers breakdown inside the lungs cells indicated important restraint in tumor development. Besides, inorganic nanoparticles together with carbon nanotubes, gold nanoparticles, quantum spots, and so forth have been utilized in most cancers gene therapy. Oishi and co-employees (2006) preliminary located the inclusion of siRNA into gold nanoparticles and added it into liver carcinoma mobile line HuH7.

3.12 Future Research

Nanotechnology has been utilized widely in an enormous number of malignant growth diagnosis and therapeutic studies by numerous researchers and could be the following large thing in fighting cancer. Many research works were carried out so far in the area of cancer nanotechnology yet at the same time much more is yet to see the light of the day. Regarding manufacturing of nanomaterials, novel preparation ways are as yet should have been investigated to improve the issues with the current techniques. To fulfil different application needs, nanoparticle-circle composites with various morphology, various sizes (from nanometer to micrometer range), and various measures of nanoparticles have consistently been sought after. In the interim, more helpful activity methods and large-scale manufacturing are another significant improvement heading. For the alteration of the circle, direction formation of practical atoms and exact control of their number are the primary difficulties. Furthermore, appropriate surface covering has been attempted to improve the biocompatibility, specificity, and selectivity of the nanoparticle-circle composites. Concerning their pragmatic application, from one viewpoint, it's basic to build up a sound knowledge of the thermodynamics and kinetics energy of the limiting response at circle/arrangement interface, which will give a theoretical establishment to managing their application experimentally, for example, better controlling the development of the circle biomolecule forms, all the more effectively streamlining the working conditions in focused organic applications, etc. Then again, to guarantee the smooth change from seat to the bedside, numerous issues should be tended to before the nanoparticle-circle composites can be utilized in people, including their biocompatibility, in vivo focusing on adequacy, pharmacokinetics, biodistribution, poisonousness, and so on. Numerous scientists have consistently been dedicating themselves to these examinations, and some even had made extraordinary advances, in spite of the fact that which are a long way from being ideal show a much brilliant application prospect (Wen et al., 2016). Notwithstanding the characteristic disadvantages, the capability of DNA-based nanomaterial in malignancy treatment is past the shadow of uncertainty, and further headway in the territory of DNA nanomaterial would give a considerable cancer analysis and treatment approach. In addition, preparation of a skilled multimodal nanoparticle should be stressed that could give a twofold punch to cancer in type of brisk conclusion and successful treatment. So obviously malignant growth nanotechnology will positively give a productive, powerful, and safe disease determination and treatment strategy not long from now (Chaturvedi et al., 2019).

3.13 Conclusions

Utilization of nanomaterials in various fields of science, designing, and innovation has gotten exceptionally well known for the most recent couple of years. Nanomedicine depends on different nanostructure proposals, which are formed with a wide scope of explicit targeting agents utilized for clinical applications, as early cancer diagnosis and therapy. The particular agents are joined to the nanoparticles; surface, which help the growth and distribution of those specialists in the neoplastic tissue. In present day, nanoparticles are being utilized broadly in biomedical research as a drug delivery system or as a treatment approach. Reliable with this reality, utilization of nanotechnology in cancer diagnostics and treatment has unlocked the road for new exploration region for example nano-oncology. Throughout the long term, research action in nano-oncology territory is fuelled by late advances in nanotechnology and set up the nano-oncology as a potential cancer treatment approach. Similarly, an incredible potential is accessible by biochemical alterations that expansion the potency and reduction the off-target impacts and opposite symptoms of restorative medications, permitting the execution of new customized drugs in medical use. Causes of cancer, treatment of cancer with limitation of exiting technology, and advantage of cancer nanotechnology for drug targeting and delivery methods of various vehicles such as liposomes, nanoshells, quantum dots, gold nanoparticles, dendrimers, nanowires, SLNs, and carbon nanotube were explained in the chapter. In general, we can infer that nano-oncology has opened a limitless method to look and design drug and drug delivery system for therapy of cancer. A constant and broad exploration in nano-oncology will build up as a conspicuous cancer treatment approach in the not-so-distant future.

References

- Abshikbayeva, Z., Tosi, D., Balmassov, D., Schena, E., Saccomandi, P., & Inglezakis, V. (2019). Application of nanoparticles and nanomaterials in thermal ablation therapy of cancer. *Nanomaterials*, 9, 1195.
- Akbarzadeh, A., Rezaei-Sadabady, R., Davaran, S., Joo, S. W., Zarghami, N., Hanifehpour, Y., Samiei, M., Kouhi, M., & Nejati Koshki, K. (2013). Liposome: Classification, preparation, and applications. *Nanoscale Research Letters*, 8, 102.
- Allen, T. M., & Cullis, P. R. (2013). Liposomal drug delivery systems: From concept to clinical applications. Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews, 65, 36–48.
- Alper, J. (2005). Shining a Light on Cancer Research. In NCI Alliance for Nanotechnology in Cancer. National Cancer Institute. USA Report 49, January/February, 1-3, 2005.
- Amador, C., Greiner, T. C., Heavican, T. B., Smith, L. M., Galvis, K. T., Lone, W., Bouska, A., D'Amore, F., Pedersen, M. B., Pileri, S., et al. (2019). Reproducing the molecular subclassification of peripheral T-cell lymphoma-NOS by immunohistochemistry. *Blood*, 134, 2159–2170.
- Ameres, S. L., Martinez, J. M., & Schroeder, R. (2007). Molecular basis for target RNA recognition and cleavage by human RISC. *Cell*, 130, 101–112.
- Ames, B. N., Gold, L. S., & Willett, W. C. (1995). The causes and prevention of cancer. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America, 92(12), 5258–5265.
- Anajwala, C. C., Jani, G. K., & Swamy, S. M. V. (2010). Current trends of nanotechnology for cancer therapy. *International Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences and Nanotechnology*, 3, 1043–1056.
- Anand, P., Kunnumakara, A. B., Sundaram, C., Harikumar, K. B., Tharakan, S. T., Lai, O. S., Sung, B., & Aggarwal, B. B. (2008). Cancer is a preventable disease that requires major lifestyle changes. *Pharmaceutical Research*, 25(9), 2097–2116.
- Ananda, S., Nowak, A. K., Cher, L., Dowling, A., Brown, B., Simes, J., Rosenthal, M. A., & COGNO. (2011). Phase 2 trial of temozolomide and pegylated liposomal doxorubicin in the treatment of patients with glioblastoma multiforme following concurrent radiotherapy and chemotherapy. *Journal of Clinical Neuroscience*, 18, 1444–1448.
- Andrews, D. W., Scott, C. B., Sperduto, P. W., Flanders, A. E., Gaspar, L. E., Schell, M. C., Werner-Wasik, M., Denas, W., Ryu, J., Bahary, J. P., Souhami, L., Rotman, M., Mehta, M. P., & Curran, J. R. W. J. (2004). Whole brain radiation therapy with or without stereotactic radiosurgery boost for patients with one to three brain metastases: Phase III results of the RTOG 9508 randomised trial. *The Lancet*, 363(9422), 1665–1672.
- Aslam, M. S., Naveed, S., Ahmed, A., Abbas, Z., Gull, I., & Atha, M. A. (2014). Side effects of chemotherapy in cancer patients and evaluation of patients opinion about starvation based differential chemotherapy. *Journal of Cancer Therapy*, 5, 817–822.
- Ataollahi, M. R., Sharifi, J., Paknahad, M. R., & Paknahad, A. (2015). Breast cancer and associated factors: A review. *Journal of Medicine and Life*, 8(4), 6–11.
- Balukrishna, S., Pilaka, V. K. R., Michael, R. C., Samuel, P., & Ravindran, P. B. (2015). Hyperfractionated Intensity Modulated Radiation Therapy (HF-IMRT) in head and neck cancer: The technical feasibility and results of a short clinical series. *Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research*, 9(5), XR01–XR04.
- Baskar, R., Dai, J., Wenlong, N., Yeo, R., & Yeoh, K. W. (2014). Biological response of cancer cells to radiation treatment. *Frontiers in Molecular Biosciences*, 1, 24.
- Bayon-Cordero, L., Alkorta, I., & Arana, L. (2019). Application of solid lipid nanoparticles to improve the efficiency of anticancer drugs. *Nanomaterials*, 9, 474.
- Benjamin, D. J. (2014). The efficacy of surgical treatment of cancer 20 years later. *Medical Hypotheses*, 82(4), 412–420.
- Bharali, D. J., & Mousa, S. A. (2010). Emerging nanomedicines for early cancer detection and im- proved treatment: Current perspective and future promise. *Pharmacology & Therapeutics*, 128, 324–35.10.

- Bianco, A., Kostarelos, K., & Prato, M. (2005). Applications of carbon nano tubes in drug delivery. *Current Opinion in Chemical Biology*, 9, 674–679.
- Blackadar, C. B. (2016). Historical review of the causes of cancer. World Journal of Clinical Oncology, 7(1), 54–86.
- Bostick, R. M., Kong, K. Y., Ahearn, T. U., Chaudry, Q., Cohen, V., & Wang, M. D. (2006). Detecting and quantifying biomarkers of risk for colorectal cancer using quantum dots and novel image analysis algorithms. *Conference Proceedings: Annual International Conference* of the IEEE Engineering in Medicine and Biology Society, 1, 3313–3316.
- Bozzuto, G., & Molinari, A. (2015). Liposomes as nanomedical devices. *International Journal of Nanomedicine*, 10, 975.
- Bray, F., Ferlay, J., Soerjomataram, I., Siegel, R. L., Torre, L. A., & Jemal, A. (2018). Global cancer statistics 2018: GLOBOCAN estimates of incidence and mortality worldwide for 36 cancers in 185 countries. *CA: A Cancer Journal for Clinicians*, 68, 394–424.
- Carbone, A. (2020). Cancer classification at the crossroads. Cancers (Basel), 12(4), 980.
- Cevher, E., Sezer, A. D., & Caglar, E. S. (2012). Gene delivery systems: Recent progress in viral and non-viral therapy. In A. D. Sezer (Ed.), *Recent advances in novel drug carrier systems* (pp. 437–470). IntechOpen.
- Chakrabarti, M., Kiseleva, R., Vertegel, A., & Ray, S. K. (2015). Carbon nanomaterials for drug delivery and cancer therapy. *Journal of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology*, 15, 5501–5511.
- Chakraborty, S., & Rahman, T. (2012). The difficulties in cancer treatment. *Ecancermedicalscience*, *6*, ed16.
- Chaturvedi, V. K., Singh, A., Singh, V. K., & Singh, M. P. (2019). Cancer nanotechnology: A new revolution for cancer diagnosis and therapy. *Current Drug Metabalism*, 20, 416–429.
- Chen, G. T. Y., Sharp, G. C., & Mori, S. (2009). A review of image-guided radiotherapy. *Radiological Physics and Technology*, 2, 1–12.
- Chen, S., Zhao, X., Chen, J., Chen, J., Kuznetsova, L., Wong, S. S., & Ojima, I. (2010). Mechanismbased tumor-targeting drug delivery system. Validation of efficient vitamin receptor-mediated endocytosis and drug release. *Bioconjugate Chemistry*, 21, 979–987.
- Chiang, A. C., & Massague, J. (2008). Molecular basis of metastasis. *The New England Journal of Medicine*, 359, 2814–2823.
- Choi, Y.-E., Kwak, J.-W., & Park, J. W. (2010). Nanotechnology for early cancer detection. Sensors, 10, 428–455.
- Constantinidou, A., Jones, R. L., Scurr, M., Al-Muderis, O., & Judson, I. (2009). Pegylated liposomal doxorubicin, an effective, well-tolerated treatment for refractory aggressive fibromatosis. *European Journal of Cancer*, 45, 2930–2934.
- Culp, M. B., Soerjomataram, I., Efstathiou, J. A., Bray, F., & Jemal, A. (2020). Recent global patterns in prostate cancer incidence and mortality rates. *European Urology*, 77, 38–52.
- Davis, F. G., Dolecek, T. A., McCarthy, B. J., & Villano, J. L. (2012). Toward determining the lifetime occurrence of metastatic brain tumors estimated from 2007 United States cancer incidence data. *Neuro-Oncology*, 14, 1171–1177.
- Demicheli, R., Retsky, M. W., Hrushesky, W. J. M., Baum, M., & Gukas, I. D. (2008). The effects of surgery on tumor growth: A century of investigations. *Annals of Oncology*, 19(11), 1821–1828.
- DeVita, V. T., & Chu, E. (2008). A history of cancer chemotherapy. *Cancer Research*, 68, 8643–8653.
- Ekambaram, P., Sathali, A. A. H., & Priyanka, K. (2012). Solid lipid nanoparticles: A review. Scientific Reviews & Chemical Communications, 2, 80–102.
- Elhissi, A. M. A., Ahmed, W., Hassan, I. U., Dhanak, V. R., & D'Emanuele, A. (2012). Carbon nanotubes in cancer therapy and drug delivery. *Journal of Drug Delivery*, 2012, 837327.
- Fang, M., Peng, C. W., Pang, D. W., & Li, Y. (2012). Quantum dots for cancer research: Current status, remaining issues, and future perspectives. *Cancer Biology & Medicine*, 9, 151–163.
- Fruscella, M., Ponzetto, A., Crema, A., & Carloni, G. (2016). The extraordinary progress in very early cancer diagnosis and personalizes therapy: The role of oncomarkers and nanotechnology. *Journal of Nanotechnology*, 2016, Article ID 3020361. https://doi.org/10.1155/2016/3020361

- Galluzzi, L., Pedro, J. M. B. S., Demaria, S., Formenti, S. C., & Kroemer, G. (2017). Activating autophagy to potentiate immunogenic chemotherapy and radiation therapy. *Nature Reviews*. *Clinical Oncology*, 14, 247–258.
- Gao, Z., Lukyanov, A. N., Singhal, A., & Torchilin, V. P. (2002). Diacyllipidpolymer micelles as nanocarriers for poorly soluble anticancer drugs. *Nano Letters*, 2, 979–982.
- Gerasimov, O. V., Boomer, J. A., Qualls, M. M., & Thompson, D. H. (1999). Cytosolic drug delivery using pH-and light-sensitive liposomes. Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews, 38, 317–338.
- Gherman, C., Tudor, M. C., Constantin, B., Flaviu, T., Stefan, R., Maria, C. S., Braicu, C., Pop, L., Petric, R. C., & Neagoe, I. B. (2015). Pharmacokinetics evaluation of carbon nanotubes using FTIR analysis and histological analysis. *Journal of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology*, 15, 2865–2869.
- Ghoncheh, M., Mirzaei, M., & Salehiniya, H. (2015). Incidence and mortality of breast cancer and their relationship with the Human Development Index (HDI) in the world in 2012. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 16(18), 8439–8443.
- Golemis, E. A., Scheet, P., Beck, T. N., Scolnick, E. M., Hunter, D. J., Hawk, E., & Hopkins, N. (2018). Molecular mechanisms of the preventable causes of cancer in the United States. *Genes & Development*, 32, 868–902.
- Griffin, L. D., & Kellam, P. (2009). Infectious causes of cancer and their detection. Journal of Biology, 8, article no.67. http://jbiol.com/content/8/7/67
- Hanahan, D., & Weinberg, R. A. (2011). Hallmarks of cancer: The next generation. *Cell*, 144, 646–674.
- Hassanpour, S. H., & Dehghani, M. (2017). Review of cancer from perspective of molecular. Journal of Cancer Research and Practice, 4, 127–129.
- Hirsch, L. R., Stafford, R. J., Bankson, J., Sershen, S. R., Rivera, B., Price, R., Hazle, J. D., Halas, N. J., & West, J. L. (2003). Nanoshellmediated near-infrared thermal therapy of tumors under magneticresonance guidance. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America*, 100, 13549–13554.
- Hood, J. D., Bednarski, M., Frausto, R., Guccione, S., Reisfeld, R., Xiang, R., & Cheresh, D. A. (2002). Tumor regression by targeted gene delivery to the neovasculature. *Science*, 296, 2404–2407.
- Hu, Y., Fine, D. H., Tasciotti, E., Bouamrani, A., & Ferrari, M. (2011). Nanodevices in diagnostics, Wiley interdisciplinary reviews. *Nanomedicine and Nanobiotechnology*, 3, 11–32.
- Huang, X., Jain, P. K., El-Sayed, I. H., & El-Sayed, M. A. (2006). Determination of the minimum temperature required for selective photothermal destruction of cancer cells with the use of immunotargeted gold nanoparticles. *Journal of Photochemistry and Photobiology B: Biology*, 82, 412–417.
- Huang, X., Jain, P. K., El-Sayed, I. H., & El-Sayed, M. A. (2007). Gold nanoparticles: Interesting optical properties and recent applications in cancer diagnostics and therapy. *Nanomedicine* (*London, England*), 2, 681–693.
- Idikio, H. A. (2011). Human cancer classification: A systems biology-based model integrating morphology, cancer stem cells, proteomics, and genomics. *Journal of Cancer*, 2, 107–115.
- IIIum, L., & Dacis, S. S. (1984). The organ uptake of intravenously administered colloidal particles can be altered using a nonionic surfactant (Poloxamer 338). FEBS Letters, 167, 79–82.
- Jaishree, V., & Gupta, P. D. (2012). Nanotechnology: A revolution in cancer diagnosis. *Indian Journal of Clinical Biochemistry*, 27(3), 214–220.
- Jemal, A., Siegel, R., Ward, E., Murray, T., Xu, J., & Thun, M. J. (2007). Cancer statistics, 2007. *CA: a Cancer Journal for Clinicians*, 57(1), 43–66.
- Ji, S. R., Liu, C., Zhang, B., Yang, F., Xu, J., Long, J., Jin, C., Fu, D. L., Ni, Q. X., & Yu, X. J. (2010). Carbon nanotubes in cancer diagnosis and therapy. *Biochimica et Biophysica Acta*, 1806, 9–35.
- Jin, C., Wang, K., Oppong-Gyebi, A., & Hu, J. (2020). Application of nanotechnology in cancer diagnosis and therapy - a mini-review. *International Journal of Medical Sciences*, 17(18), 2964–2973.

- Juri, A., Braicu, C., Pop, L. A., Tomuleasa, C., Gherman, C. D., & Neagoe, I. B. (2017). The new era of nanotechnology, an alternative to change cancer treatment. *Drug Design, Development* and Therapy, 11, 2871–2890.
- Kano, H., Flickinger, J. C., Tonetti, D., Hsu, A., Yang, H. C., Flannery, T. J., Niranjan, A., & Lunsford, L. D. (2017). Estimating the risks of adverse radiation effects after gamma knife radiosurgery for arteriovenous malformations. *Stroke*, 48, 84–90.
- Kashyap, M., Tiwari, A., Arya, K., & Saxena, V. L. (2019). Quantum dot: An emerging nanocrystal for cancer diagnosis and therapy. *Research Journal of Life Sciences, Bioinformatics, Pharmaceutical and Chemical Sciences,* 5, 320–330.
- Kawashima, N., Nakayama, K., Itoh, K., Itoh, T., Ishikawa, M., & Biju, V. (2010). Reversible dimerization of EGFR revealed by single molecule fluorescence imaging using quantum dots. *European Journal of Organic Chemistry*, 16, 1186–1192.
- Kesharwani, P., & Iyer, A. K. (2015). Recent advances in dendrimer-based nanovectors for tumortargeted drug and gene delivery. *Drug Discovery Today*, 20, 536–547.
- Kim, K. Y. (2007). Nanotechnology platforms and physiological challenges for cancer thera- peutics. Nanomedicine: Nanotechnology, Biology and Medicine, 3(2), 103–110.
- Kolonel, L. N., Altshuler, D., & Henderson, B. E. (2004). The multiethnic cohort study: Exploring genes, lifestyle and cancer risk. *Nature Reviews. Cancer*, 4, 519–527.
- Kotnis, A., Sarin, R., & Mulherkar, R. (2005). Genotype phenotype and cancer: Role of low penetrance genes and environment in tumor susceptibility. *Journal of Biosciences*, 30, 93–102.
- Krishanan, S. R., & George, S. K. (2014). Nanotherapeutics in cancer prevention, diagnosis and treatment. In S. J. T. Gowder (Ed.), *Pharmacology and therapeutics* (pp. 235–253). IntechOpen. https://doi.org/10.5772/58419
- Kukowska-Latallo, J. F., Candido, K. A., Cao, Z., Nigavekar, S. S., Majoros, I. J., Thomas, T. P., Balogh, L. P., Khan, M. K., & Baker, J. J. R. (2005). Nanoparticle targeting of anticancer drug improves therapeutic response in animal model of human epithelial cancer. *Cancer Research*, 65, 5317–5324.
- La Van, D. A., McGuire, T., & Langer, R. (2003). Small-scale systems for in vivo drug delivery. *Nature Biotechnology*, 21, 1184–1191.
- Liong, M., Lu, J., Kovochich, M., Xia, T., Ruehm, S. G., Nel, A. E., Tamanoi, F., & Zink, J. I. (2008). Multifunctional inorganic nanoparticles for imaging, targeting, and drug delivery. *ACS Nano*, 2, 889–896.
- Liu, C., & Xu, X. Y. (2015). A systematic study of temperature sensitive liposomal delivery of doxorubicin using a mathematical model. *Computers in Biology and Medicine*, 60, 107–116.
- Liu, J., Xiao, Y., & Allen, C. (2004). Polymer-drug compatibility: A guide to the development of delivery systems for the anticancer agent, ellipticine. *Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences*, 93, 132–143.
- Loo, C., Lin, A., Hirsch, L., Lee, M. H., Barton, J., Halas, N., West, J., & Drezek, R. (2004). Nanoshell-enabled photonics-based imaging and therapy of cancer. *Technology in Cancer Research & Treatment*, 3, 33–40.
- Loud, J. T., & Murphy, J. (2017). Cancer screening and early detection in the 21st century. Seminars in Oncology Nursing, 33(2), 121–128.
- Lowy, D. R., & Collins, F. S. (2016). Aiming high--changing the trajectory for cancer. *The New England Journal of Medicine*, 374, 1901–1904.
- Madaan, K., Kumar, S., Poonia, N., Lather, V., & Pandita, D. (2014). Dendrimers in drug delivery and targeting: Drug-dendrimer interactions and toxicity issues. *Journal of Pharmacy & Bioallied Sciences*, 6, 139–150.
- Madani, S. Y., Shabani, F., Dwek, M. V., & Seifalian, A. M. (2013). Conjugation of quantum dots on carbon nanotubes for medical diagnosis and treatment. *International Journal of Nanomedicine*, 8, 941–950.
- Maiti, A., & Bhattacharyya, S. (2013). Quantum dots and applications in medical science. International Journal of Chemical Science and Chemical Engineering, 3, 37–42.

- Martinelli, C., Pucci, C., & Ciofani, G. (2019). Nanostructured criters as innovative tools for cancer diagnosis and therapy. APL Bioengineering, 3.011502. 0. https://doi.org/10.1063/1.5079943
- Martins, S. M., Sarmento, B., Nunes, C., Lucio, M., Reis, S., & Ferreira, D. C. (2013). Brain targeting effect of camptothecin-loaded solid lipid nanoparticles in rat after intravenous administration. *European Journal of Pharmaceutics and Biopharmaceutics*, 85(3 Pt A), 488–502.
- Mattheolabakis, G., Ling, D., Ahmad, G., & Amiji, M. (2016). Enhanced anti-tumor efficacy of lipid-modified platinum derivatives in combination with survivin silencing sirna in resistant non-small cell lung cancer. *Pharmaceutical Research*, 33, 2943–2953.
- MeCormack, B., & Gregoriadis, G. (1994). Drugs-in-cyclodextrins-inliposomes a novel concept in drug delivery. *International Journal of Pharmaceutics*, 112, 249–258.
- Montaseri, H., Kruger, C. A., & Abrahamse, H. (2020). Recent advances in porphydrin-based inorganic nanoparticles for cancer treatement. *International Journal of Molecular Sciences*, 21, 3358.
- Moreira-Nunes, C. A., Mesquita, F. P., Portilho, A. J. D., Junior, F. A. R. M., Maues, J. H. D. S., Pantoja, L. D. C., Wanderley, A. V., Khayat, A. S., Zuercher, W. J., Montenegro, R. C., Moraes-Filho Mod, & Moraes, M. E. A. D. (2020). Targeting aurora kinases as a potential prognostic and therapeutical biomarkers in pediatric acute lymphoblastic leukaemia. *Scientific Reports*, 10, 21272.
- Morrison, R., Schleicher, S. M., Sun, Y., Niermann, K. J., Kim, S., Spratt, D. E., Chung, C. H., & Lu, B. (2011). Targeting the mechanisms of resistance to chemotherapy and radiotherapy with the cancer stem cell hypothesis. *Journal of Oncology*, 2011, 941876.
- Morrow, K. J., Bawa, J. R., & Wei, C. (2007). Recent advances in basic and clinical nanomedicine. *Medical Clinics of North America*, 91, 805–843.
- Mouw, K. W., Cleary, J. M., Reardon, B., Pike, J., Braunstein, L. Z., Kim, J., Amin-Mansour, A., Miao, D., Damish, A., Chin, J., Ott, P. A., Fuchs, C. S., Martin, N. E., Getz, G., Carter, S., Mamon, H. J., Hornick, J. L., Allen, E. M. V., & D'Andrea, A. S. (2017). Genomic evolution after chemoradiotherapy in anal squamous cell carcinoma. *Clinical Cancer Research*, 23(12), 3214–3222.
- Muller, R. H., Radtke, M., & Wissing, S. A. (2002). Nanostructured lipid matrices for improved microencapsulation of drugs. *International Journal of Pharmaceutics*, 242, 121–0128.
- Nagai, H., & Kim, Y. H. (2017). Cancer prevention from the perspective of global cancer burden patterns. *Journal of Thoracic Disease*, 9(3), 448–451.
- Nersesyan, H., & Slavin, K. V. (2007). Current aproach to cancer pain management: Availability and implications of different treatment options. *Therapeutics and Clinical Risk Management*, *3*(3), 381–400.
- Nurgali, K., Jagoe, R. T., & Abalo, R. (2018). Editorial: Adverse effects of cancer chemotherapy: Anything new to improve tolerance and reduce sequelae? *Frontiers in Pharmacology*, 9, 245.
- O'Connor, A. E., Gallagher, W. M., & Byrne, A. T. (2009). Porphyrin and nonporphyrin photosensitizers in oncology: Preclinical and clinical advances in photodynamic therapy. *Photochemistry* and Photobiology, 85, 1053–1074.
- Oerlemans, C., Bult, W., Bos, M., Storm, G., Nijsen, J. F. W., & Hennink, W. E. (2010). Polymeric micelles in anticancer therapy: Targeting, imaging and triggered release. *Pharmaceutical Research*, 27, 2569–2589.
- Oishi, M., Nakaogami, J., Ishii, T., & Nagasaki, Y. (2006). Smart PEGylated gold nanoparticles for the cytoplasmic delivery of siRNA to induce enhanced gene silencing. *Chemistry Letters*, 35, 1046–1047.
- Oluogun, W. A., Adedokun, K. A., Oyenike, M. A., & Adeyeba, O. A. (2019). Histological classification, grading, staging, and prognostic indexing of female breast cancer in an African population: A 10-year retrospective study. *International Journal of Health and Science (Qassim)*, 13(4), 3–9.
- Pan, X. Q., & Lee, R. J. (2005). In vivo antitumor activity of folate receptortargeted liposomal daunorubicin in a murine leukemia model. *Anticancer Research*, 25, 343–346.

- Parkin, D. M., Bray, F., Ferlay, J., & Pisani, P. (2002). Global cancer statistics, 2002. CA: a Cancer Journal for Clinicians, 55, 74–108.
- Pavlova, N. N., & Thompson, C. B. (2016). The emerging hallmarks of cancer metabolism. *Cell Metabolism*, 23, 27–47.
- Piraux, L. (2020). Magnetic nanowires. Applied Science, 10, 1832.
- Purohit, R., & Singh, S. (2018). Fluorescent gold nanoclusters for efficient cancer cell targeting. International Journal of Nanomedicine, 13, 15–17.
- Ravindran, R. (2011). Nano technology in cancer diagnosis and treatment: An overview. Oral & Maxillofacial pathology Journal, 2, 101–106.
- Read, G. (1998). Conformal radiotherapy: A clinical review. Clinical Oncology, 10(5), 288–296.
- Rehman, J., Zahra, A. N., Khalid, M., Asghar, H. M. N. H. K., Gilani, Z. A., Ullah, I., Nasar, G., Akhtar, M. M., & Usmani, M. N. (2018). Intensity modulated radiation therapy: A review of current practice and future outlooks. *Journal of Radiation Research and Applied Sciences*, 11(4), 361–367.
- Ren, J., Shen, S., Wang, D., Xi, Z., Guo, L., Pang, Z., Qian, Y., Sun, X., & Jiang, X. (2012). The targeted delivery of anticancer drugs to brain glioma by PEGylated oxidized multi-walled carbon nanotubes modified with angiopep-2. *Biomaterials*, 33, 3324–3333.
- Riggio, C., Pagni, E., & Raffa, C. A. (2011). Nano-oncology: Clinical application for cancer therapy and future perspectives. *Journal of Nanomaterials*, 2011. Article ID 164506, 10 pages. https://doi.org/10.1155/2011/164506
- Robinson, J. T., Welsher, K., Tabakman, S. M., Sherlock, S. P., Wang, H., Luong, R., & Dai, H. (2010). High performance in vivo near-IR (>1 µm) imaging and photothermal cancer therapy with carbon nanotubes. *Nano Research*, *3*, 779–793.
- Roeder, F., Meldolesi, E., Gerum, S., & ValentiniV, R. C. (2020). Recent advances in (chemo-) radiation therapy for rectal cancer: A comprehensive review. *Radiation Oncology*, 15, 262.
- Rosai, J., & Ackerman, L. V. (1979). The pathology of tumors, part III: Grading, staging & classification. CA: a Cancer Journal for Clinicians, 29, 66–77.
- Rosenfeld, M. R., Ye, X., Supko, J. G., Dasideri, S., Grossman, S. A., Bream, S., Mikkelson, T., Wang, D., Chang, Y. C., Hu, J., McAfee, Q., Fisher, J., Troxel, A. B., Piao, S., Heitjan, D. F., Tan, K. S., Pontiggia, L., O'Dwyer, P. J., Davis, L. E., & Amaravadi, R. K. (2014). A phase I/ II trial of hydroxychloroquine in conjunction with radiation therapy and concurrent and adjuvant temozolomide in patients with newly diagnosed glioblastoma multiforme. *Autophagy*, 10, 1359–1368.
- Roy, R., & Baek, M. G. (2002). Glycodendrimers: Novel glycotope isosteres unmasking sugar coding. Case study with T-antigen markers from breast cancer MUC1 glycoprotein. *Reviews in Molecular Biotechnology*, 90, 291–309.
- Ruan, Y., Yu, W., Cheng, F., Zhang, X., Rao, T., Xia, Y., & Larre, S. (2011). Comparison of quantum-dots-and fluorescein-isothiocyanate-based technology for detecting prostate-specific antigen expression in human prostate cancer. *IET Nanobiotechnology*, 5, 47–51.
- Schirrmacher, V. (2019). From chemotherapy to biological therapy: A review of novel concepts to reduce the side effects of systemic cancer treatment (review). *International Journal of Oncology*, 54(2), 407–419.
- Senior, J., Delgado, C., Fisher, D., Tilcock, C., & Gregoriadis, G. (1999). Influence of surface hydrophilicity of liposomes on their interaction with plasma-protein and clearance from the circulation studies with poly (ethylene glycol)-coated vesicles. *Biochimica et Biophysica Acta*, 1062, 77–87.
- Shao, L., Gao, Y., & Yan, F. (2011). Semiconductor quantum dots for biomedical applications. Sensors, 11, 11736–11751.
- Shieh, Y., Eklund, M., Sawaya, G. F., Black, W. C., Kramer, B. S., & Esserman, L. J. (2016). Population-based screening for cancer: Hope and hype. *Nature Reviews. Clinical Oncology*, 13(9), 550–565.
- Siegel, R. L., Miller, K. D., & Jemal, A. (2020). Cancer statistics, 2020. CA: a Cancer Journal for Clinicians, 70, 7–30.

- Sonali, V. M. K., Singh, R. P., Agrawal, P., Mehata, A. K., Pawde, D. M., Narendra, S. R., & Muthu, M. S. (2018). Nanotheranostics: Emerging strategies for early diagnosis and therapy of brain cancer. *Nano*, 2, 70–86.
- Stein, L., Urban, M. I., O'Connell, D., Yu, X. Q., Beral, V., Newton, R., Ruff, P., Donde, B., Hale, M., Patel, M., & Sitas, F. (2008). The spectrum of human immunodeficiency virus-associated cancers in a South African black population: Results from a case-control study, 1995-2004. *International Journal of Cancer*, 122, 2260–2265.
- Stelow, E. B., Shaco-Levy, R., Bao, F., Garcia, J., & Klimstra, D. (2010). Pancreatic acinar cell carcinomas with prominent ductal differentiation: Mixed acinar ductal carcinoma and mixed acinar endocrine ductal carcinoma. *American Journal of Surgical Pathology*, 34(4), 510–518.
- Su, P. J., Wu, M. H., Wang, H. M., Lee, C. L., Huang, W. K., Wu, C. E., Chang, H. K., Chao, Y. K., Tseng, C. K., Chiu, T. K., Lin, N. M. J., Ye, S. R., Lee, J. Y. C., & Hsieh, C. H. (2016). Circulating tumour cells as an independent prognostic factor in patients with advanced Oesophageal squamous cell carcinoma undergoing chemoradiotherapy. *Scientific Reports*, 6, 31423.
- Tanaka, T., Shiramot, S., Miyashita, M., Fujishima, Y., & Kaneo, Y. (2004). Tumor targeting based on the effect of enhanced permeability and retention (EPR) and the mechanism of receptormediated endocytosis (RME). *International Journal of Pharmacy*, 277, 39–61.
- Thun, M. J., De Lancey, J. O., Center, M. M., Jemal, A., & Ward, E. M. (2010). The global burden of cancer: Priorities for prevention. *Carcinogenesis*, 31, 100–110.
- Tian, X., Liu, K., Hou, Y., Cheng, J., & Zhang, J. (2018). The evolution of proton beam therapy: Current and future status. *Molecular and Clinical Oncology*, 8(1), 15–21.
- Tohme, S., Simmons, R. L., & Tsung, A. (2017). Surgery for cancer: A trigger for metastases. *Cancer Research*, 77(7), 1548–1552.
- Vasir, J. K., & Labhasetwar, V. (2005). Targeted drug delivery in cancer therapy. *Technology in Cancer Research & Treatment*, 4, 363–374.
- Visvader, J. E. (2011). Cells of origin in cancer. Nature, 469, 314-322.
- Vos, T., et al. (2016). Global, regional, and national incidence, prevalence, and years lived with disability for 310 diseases and injuries, 1990-2015: A systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2015. *Lancet*, 388, 1545–1602.
- Waghmare, A. S., Grampurohit, N. D., Gadhave, M. V., Gaikwad, D. D., & Jadhav, S. L. (2012). Solid lipid nanoparticles: A promising drug delivery system. *International Research Journal* of Pharmacy, 3, 100–107.
- Wagner, A., Ploder, O., Enislidis, G., Truppe, M., & Ewers, R. (1995). Virtual image guided navigation in tumor surgery-technical innovation. *Journal of Cranio-Maxillofacial Surgery*, 23, 271–273.
- Wan, S., Pestka, S., Jubin, R. G., Lyu, Y. L., Tsai, Y. C., & Liu, L. F. (2012). Chemotherapeutics and radiation stimulate MHC class I expression through elevated interferon-beta signaling in breast cancer cells. *PLoS One*, 7, e32542.
- Wang, H. Z., Wang, H. Y., Liang, R. Q., & Ruan, K. C. (2004). Detection of tumor marker CA125 in ovarian carcinoma using quantum dots. *Acta Biochimica et Biophysica Sinica*, 36, 681–686.
- Wang, C. E., Stayton, P. S., Pun, S. H., & Convertine, A. J. (2015). Polymer nanostructures synthesized by controlled living polymerization for tumor-targeted drug delivery. *Journal of Controlled Release*, 219, 345–354.
- Wang, K., Kievit, F. M., & Zhang, M. (2016). Nanoparticles for cancer gene therapy: Recent advances, challenges, and strategies. *Pharmacological Research*, 114, 56–66.
- Wang, Z., Qiao, R., Tang, N., Lu, Z., Wang, H., Zhang, Z., Xue, X., Huang, Z., Zhang, S., Zhang, G., & Li, Y. (2017). Active targeting theranostic iron oxide nanoparticles for MRI and magnetic resonance guided focused ultrasound ablation of lung cancer. *Biomaterials*, 127, 25–35.
- Wen, C. Y., Xie, H. Y., Zhang, Z. L., Wu, L. L., Hu, J., Tang, M., Wu, M., & Pang, D. W. (2016). Fluorescent/magnetic micro/nano-spheres based on quantum dots and/or magnetic nanoparticles: Preparation, properties and their applications in cancer studies. *Nanoscale*, 8, 12406–12429.
- Woller, E. K., & Cloninger, M. J. (2001). Mannose functionalization of a sixth generation dendrimer. *Biomacromolecules*, 2, 1052–1054.

- Wu, H. C., Chang, D. K., & Huang, C. T. (2006). Targeted therapy for cancer. Journal of Cancer Molecules, 2(2), 57–66.
- Yu, X., Trase, I., Ren, M., Duval, K., Guo, X., & Chen, Z. (2016). Design of nanoparticle-based carriers for targeted drug delivery. *Journal of Nanomaterials*, 2016. Article ID 1087250, 15 pages.
- Yue, X., & Dai, Z. (2018). Liposomal nanotechnology for cancer theranostics. *Current Medicinal Chemistry*, 25, 1397–1408.
- Yuen, G. J., Demissie, E., & Pillai, S. (2016). B lymphocytes and cancer: A love-hate relationship. *Trends Cancer*, 2(12), 747–757.
- Zhang, L., Gu, F., Chan, J., Wang, A., Langer, R., & Farokhzad, O. (2008). Nanoparticles in medicine: Therapeutic applications and developments. *Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics*, 83, 761–769.
- Zheng, G., Patolsky, F., & Lieber, C. M. (2006). Nanowire biosensors: A tool for medicine and life sciene. Nanomedicine: Nanotechnology, Biology and Medicine, 2, 277. https://doi. org/10.1016/j.nano.2006.10.050